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MANGAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
To the Members of 
Mangal Industries Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that the 29th annual general meeting of the members of Mangal Industries Limited will be held on 
Wednesday, August 26, 2020 at 10.00 am through video conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact 
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 
the report of the Auditors’ thereon and the report of the Board of Directors’ and this connection to consider, and if deemed 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED that the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the report of 
the auditor’s thereon and the report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, as placed before 
the 29th Annual General Meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2.	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Jayadev Galla (DIN: 00143610), who retires by rotation in terms of Article 122 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment 
and in this connection to consider, and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Mr. Jayadev 
Galla (DIN: 00143610) who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3.	 To declare dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the dividend of Rs. 1.60/- per share (16%) as recommended by the Board of Directors be and is hereby 
declared on the equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 and the same be paid to 
those shareholders, in case of shares held in physical form, whose names appear in the register of members as of the close 
of business hours on August 19, 2020 and in case of shares held in dematerialized form to the beneficiaries as of the close 
of business hours on August 19, 2020 as per details furnished by the depositories for this purpose.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 and in this regard, to consider and if deemed 
fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. Vadlamudi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 001717), appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of 
the Company for the financial year 2020-21, at a remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000 /-(Rupees two lakhs fifty thousand only) as 
also the payment of service tax as applicable and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the 
aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company be and is hereby severally 
authorised to do all acts and to take all steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For Mangal Industries Limited

Place	 : Hyderabad	 P. Ravi Kumar
Date 	 : 27.07.2020 	 Company Secretary
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) : U15122AP1990PLC011932
Registered Office
Renigunta-Cuddapah Road, Karakamabadi, Tirupati-517520, Andhra Pradesh.
Tel : 91(877)2265000, Fax : 91(877) 2285600
Website : http://www.mangalltd.com/
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NOTES:
1.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular no. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with circular nos. 14/2020 dated 

April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 (“Circulars”) permitted the holding of 21st Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
through Video Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OVAM), without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and aforesaid Circulars, the AGM of 
the Company will be held through VC / OAVM.

2.	 Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only.

3.	 In compliance with the aforesaid Circulars, the Annual Report 2019-20 including the notice of the AGM, inter-alia, indicating 
the process and manner of remote e-voting, attending AGM through VC/OVAM and instructions for members for e-voting 
on the day of AGM are being sent by electronic mode to all the members whose e-mail address are registered with the 
Company/Depositories for communication purpose.

4.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy so appointed need not be a member of the Company. Since 
this AGM is being held pursuant to the aforesaid Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of members has been 
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and 
hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route map are not annexed to this Notice.

5.	 Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 
103 of the Act.

6.	 The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating to the 
special business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

7.	 Brief profile of Mr. Jayadev Galla, Director proposed to be appointed/re-appointed along with the names of the companies 
in which they hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of Board, Committees, shareholding and other details as 
required under Secretarial Standard-2 are furnished herein as Annexure I and forms part of the notice.

8.	 The record date is August 26, 2020 for the purpose of determining the entitlement of member to the dividend for the financial 
year 2019-20, if declared at the meeting.

9.	 The registers i.e Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and Register of Contracts or Arrangements maintained 
under Section 170 and Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection to the members at the 
meeting.

10.	 Members may also note that the notice of the 29th annual general meeting and the Annual Report 2019-20 shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.manglltd.com. The physical copies will also be available at the registered office of the 
Company for inspection during normal business hours on working days. 

11.	 Members seeking any information with regard to the financial statements are requested to write to the Company atleast 7 
days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to special business mentioned in the accompanying notice dated 
27.07.2020 and shall be taken as forming part of the notice

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on July 27, 2020, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
approved the appointment of M/s. Vadlamudi & Associates, Cost Accountants, Tirupati (Firm Registration No. 001717), to conduct 
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 on a remuneration of Rs.2,50,000 /-(Rupees two lakhs 
fifty thousand only) plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
consent of the members sought by way of an ordinary resolution as setout at item.no.4 of the notice ratifying the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2020-21.

None of the Directors or KMP are interested in the aforesaid resolution.
By order of the Board

For Mangal Industries Limited

Place : Hyderabad 	 P. Ravi Kumar
Date : 27.07.2020 	 Company Secretary
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BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR APPOINTMENT/ RE-
APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND OTHER DETAILS PURSUANT 
TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD -2.

Name of the Director Mr. Jayadev Galla
Director Identification

Number (DIN)

00143610

Date of birth 24-03-1966
Date of appointment 02-12-2000
Qualification Bachelors Degree in Political Science and Economics
Experience & Expertise in 
specific functional area

Mr. Jayadev Galla is the Vice Chairman of Mangal Industries Limited. As a Co-founder of 
Amara Raja, he joined the Group in the year 1994 and has worked in various capacities till 
he became the MD of Amara Raja Batteries Limited. Mr. Jayadev Galla is Vice-Chairman 
and Managing Director of Amara Raja Batteries Ltd since August, 2003.

Prior to joining the ARBL, he served as International Sales Executive, GNB Battery 
Technologies, Inc., USA (now part of Exide Technologies, USA). He holds a Bachelor’s 
degree in Political Science and Economics from University of Illinois at Urbana Champaign, 
USA.

Mr. Jayadev Galla is a member of the World Economic Forum representing the Amara Raja 
Group. He is appointed as a Governor of the Electricity Industry and as a Principal of the 
Global Battery Alliance. He was a panelist for a session titled “Unlocking Value from Lost 
Resources” at the Annual Meeting in Davos, Switzerland in January 2018.

Terms & Conditions of 
Appointment or re-appointment

As per Company’s Policy on Appointment of Board Members.

Remuneration last drawn Nil
Shareholding in the Company as 
on 31.03.2020

Nil * 

* Equity shares of 4,97,70,38 face value of Rs.100/-each held through RNGalla Family 
Private Limited (Holding Company).  

Relationship with other directors 
and KMPs of the Company

Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Father, Mr.Harshavardhana Gourineni, nephew, Mrs.
Padmavathi Galla, Spouse and Mr.Ashok Galla, Son. 

No. of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year

Please refer to Directors report

List of Companies in which 
outside directorship held

•	 Amara Raja Batteries Limited,
•	 Amara Raja Power Systems Limited,
•	 Amara Raja Electronics Limited
•	 Amara Raja Infra Private Limited, 
•	 Nine Nines Lifestyle Private Limited,
•	 Amara Raja Media and Entertainment Private Limited
•	 Amara Raja Blaze Technologies Private Limited
•	 RNGalla Family Private Limited

Chairman/Member of the 
Committees of Board of 
Directors of Indian Companies

•	 Share Transfer and Stakeholders Relationship Committee & Loan and Investment 
committee, member in Amara Raja Batteries Limited

•	 Loan and Investment committee, Member in Amara Raja Power Systems Limited
•	 Loan and Investment committee, Member in Amara Raja Electronics Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2019-20 
To
The Members of 
Mangal Industries Limited

Your Board of Directors present their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

1.	 Financial highlights:

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2020 is summarized below:
` in crores

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Revenue from operations 819.39 884.48

Other income 4.13 2.55

Total income 823.52 887.03
Profit before tax 65.44 74.22

Less: Tax expense (including deferred tax) 20.99 25.84

Profit for the year 44.45 48.38

Total other comprehensive - income/(loss) (1.18) (0.92)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 43.28 47.46

During the financial year 2019-20, your Company reported revenue from operations of ` 819.39 crores as compared to  
` 884.48 crores over the previous financial year registering de-growth of 7%. The Profit before tax (PBT) was ` 65.44 crores 
against the ` 74.22 crores over the previous financial year. The decline in revenue and profit due to slow down in key 
manufacturing sectors and covid-19 outbreak and containment measures towards end of the financial year. 

Your Directors have proposed to retain the surplus amount of ` 43.28 crores in the “Statement of Profit and Loss” and not to 
transfer to the general reserves.

2. 	 Operations and business performance

a.	 The performance of each SBU of your Company is as follows:

(i) 	 Battery components (BC) SBU :

During the year, the BC-SBU processed 31,500 metric tons of raw materials and supplied the required battery 
components to Amara Raja Batteries Limited and other key customers. Also, your Company commenced bulk 
supplies of two wheeler bushes to Clarios, Brazil. 

The manufacturing capacities were enhanced by adding new injection molding machines with axis robots. New 
technology in pressure die casting process was introduced during the year by upgrading the process from single 
slide to multi slide, which had resulted in better quality and enhanced productivity in manufacturing of two wheeler 
bushes for customers.

Your Company continue to adopt new technologies and best practices at various levels at all manufacturing facilities 
which had resulted in significant improvement, building efficiencies and operations in the Battery components SBU. 

(ii) 	 Auto Components (AC) SBU :

During the year, the AC-SBU forged 4,200 MT of products for its key customers belonging to Automotive, 
Engineering, Tractors and Industrial business segment(s). The targets for the year under review was not achieved 
due to market slowdown and de-growth in the automotive industry. 

The AC-SBU received new business opportunities from the current customers like viz., Ashok Leyland, Bosch, 
LS Automotive, Royal Enfield and Yamaha Motors and also roped in new customer(s) viz., Brakes India, Mando 
Automotive, Nokia Telecom and TVS Motors.
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During the year under review, the Company was qualified initially as Tier-2 supplier to Maruti Suzuki Limited and 
we are confident of becoming Tier -1 supplier with continued supply of quality products over a period of time. 
Further the products were SQ certified by Hyundai Motors.

The AC-SBU expects good revenue from Automotive customers in the coming years. During the year, the product 
offerings to the customers were increased with addition of Axle bolts, Cylinder Head Bolts and Wheel Bolts to our 
wide range of products.

(iii) 	 Metal Fabrications (MF) SBU :

During the year, the MF-SBU processed 9,800 MT of Steel and the MF SBU successfully completed its first export 
order to Ingeteam Spain. Further, the SBU initiated supply to its first order received from IKEA for their metal 
products line. 

The MF SBU commissioned the Fiber Laser Machine & Press Brake equipment(s) from Trumpf GmBH in the MF 
SBU, which enhanced the capacity to the cutting line and capability to the bending line. 

The MF SBU continued its supplies to the Elevator and Metro Coach business segments and would increase its 
focus and footprints in the said business segment.

(iv) 	 Storage Solutions (SS) SBU :

During the year, the SS-SBU processed 3800 MT of steel for various customers in 3PL, Retail, eCommerce, 
Automotive and manufacturing sectors. The revenue plan was not achieved due to projects slowdown in automotive 
and manufacturing sectors and competition dynamics. 

The SS-SBU successfully completed design, manufacturing, delivery and installation of five major seismic ASRS 
racking projects for various key customers during the year. It also completed a major regional distribution centre 
for a Retail customer, a seismic compliant multilevel mezzanine storage for leading eCom customer and delivery 
of a mega retail store project for a furniture major.

The brand SILVER LINING continued to be at the forefront of technology-led automated solutions through its 
integration partners. Your Company works with its various partners in co-creating new-age solutions for new areas 
of growth to deliver unparalleled value to the customers.

(v)	 Toolworks (TW) SBU :

During the year, the TW-SBU completed its first phase of Toolwork project, thereby supporting the in-house 
requirements. Further the TW-SBU received its first export order from Robert Shaw, US. 

The TW-SBU enhanced the capability by addition of high technology 5-Axis CNC Machine from DMG by using 
Hypermill CAM software.

b. 	 QHSE

During the year, all the manufacturing plants were certified under ISO 45001:2016 for its occupational health and safety 
management systems. The training and assessment of QMS Maturity were completed in AC and SS SBU’s to build 
baseline for Business Excellence and the MF SBU continue to be recertified under EM 15085-2 (Wielding Certification) 
from DVS, Germany.

c. 	 New initiatives 

•	 Your Company had initiated the implementation of “Total Productive Maintenance” (TPM) concept in Battery 
components, Auto components SBU at Petamitta location and Storage Solution SBU at Tenepalli location under 
the guidance and consultation of JMAC, Tokyo. The TPM implementation would help the Company to enhance 
overall equipment efficiency, maintain the equipment working condition, eliminating breakdowns and improves the 
manufacturing process. 

•	 Your Company inaugurated “Mangal Design Hub” at Chennai as part of the endeavour to transform your Company 
into a design led organisation. The design hub will act as repository of know-how for technological and innovation 
activities of the Company. 

•	 Your Company had initiated ERP software migration from Legacy system (Ramco) to SAP S4 HANA.

•	 Your company implemented online monitoring of Machines using “Inter of things” (IoT) at AC SBU. 
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d. 	 Business Outlook

Global economic growth is projected to contract sharply from 3.3% in 2019 to -3% in 2020* (source: World Economic 
Outlook, April 2020, International Monetary Fund), much worse than during the 2008-09 financial crisis. The rolling 
lockdowns and social distancing restrictions on account of the pandemic are expected to significantly impact economic 
activity in all major markets, and may cause contraction in demand. 

Your Company as an immediate and short term measures downscaled the current capex investments except for 
necessary maintenance capex, deferred the major planned initiatives, initiated various cost reduction measures and 
conserve cash. We expect Q1FY21 to be significantly impacted from both supply side as well as demand side, due to 
plant shutdowns as well as subsequent lower demand as people tackle the pandemic. The turnaround of the situation 
would depend upon the speed with which the outbreak is contained and economic activity returns to normalcy.

Though the market outlook looks weak, all the SBUs of the Company are making all efforts to achieve targeted revenue 
for the FY21 with strong recovery plans being worked out and focused efforts will be made with targeted customers and 
markets for achieving the business goals. 

e. 	 Awards and Accolades:

During the year under review, the following awards and accolades were received by the Company

•	 “Prize for Leadership in HR Excellence” award at the most coveted and prestigious 10th National HR Excellence 
Award 2019-20 held at Mumbai.

			   BC SBU: 

•	 5S Sustenance Award Level-2 for its manufacturing facilities at Petamitta and Amara Raja Growth Corridor, 
Chittoor District; 

•	 Platinum award from ABK-AOTS Dosokai and 

•	 Gold award from ICQCC Competition held at Tokyo, Japan.

			   AC SBU:

•	 Best Supplier from LS Automotive, Mando Automotive and Tata Ficosa.

•	 5S Sustenance Level-II from ABK-AOTS Chennai

•	 NCQC Gold won by All Women’s 1st team. 

			   MF SBU: 

•	 Awards and recognition from CCQC – Tirupati Chapter, NCQC – Varanasi, 5S Gold Award from ABK-AOTS and 
Kone Elevators

			   SS SBU:

•	 5S Sustenance Level-II Gold Award from ABK-AOTS Chennai, NCQC Varanasi -Par Excellence award, CII 
Vijayawada -QCC Gold award. 

3. 	 Scheme of Arrangement (“the scheme”) between Mangal Industries Limited (“Demerged Company”) and RNGalla 
Family Private Limited (“Resulting Company”) 

The scheme received the sanction of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench, (NCLT), Hyderabad 
vide its order dated 08.07.2019 with appointed date as 01.04.2018 and the said order was filed with the Registrar of 
Companies on 26.07.2019 and the scheme came into effect from 26.07.2019.

Pursuant to a scheme of arrangement between RFPL and MIL sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Hyderabad. Mangal Industries Limited transferred its investment viz., 31,15,500 equity shares of ` 1/- each constituting 
1.82% of the paid up share capital of Amara Raja Batteries Limited to RNGalla Family Private Limited.
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4. 	 Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between the end of the financial 
year and the date of the Report.

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the 
financial year and the date of this Report. You are requested to refer to the disclosure in Note 40 to the notes on financial 
statements on disclosure with regard to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operations and financial position of 
the Company.

5. 	 Dividend

The Directors recommend a dividend of ̀  1.60/- per equity share of face value of ̀  10/-(representing 16%) as dividend for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2020, subject to the approval of members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

6. 	 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel	

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.Jayadev Galla (DIN: 00143610), is liable 
to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

As on March 31, 2020, Mr.IBK.Murthy and Mr.C.Prasanth are the Independent Directors of the Company appointed 
pursuant to Section 149 of the Act. They have submitted as declaration confirming that each of them meet with the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and there has been no change in the 
circumstances which may affect their status as independent director during the year.

All the independent directors registered themselves in the database maintained with Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs 
(IICA) and a declaration in this regard was received from each of them. In the opinion of the Board, all the independent 
directors are persons of integrity and possesses the relevant expertise and experience (including the proficiency) as required 
under the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

Independent Directors met on February 26, 2020 and reviewed the performance of the Non-Executive Directors and Board 
as a whole. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Harshavardhana Gourineni, MD & CEO, Mr. 
G. Satish Kumar, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. P. Ravikumar, Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. There has been no change in Key Managerial Personnel during the year.

7. 	 AUDITORS

i. 	 Statutory Auditor and their report

The Auditors Report given by M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, on the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 forms part of the Annual Report. The Auditors’ Report 
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

M/s. Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants, Vijayawada were appointed as statutory auditors at the Annual General 
Meeting held on September 2, 2016 for a term of five (5) years from the conclusion of this 25th annual general meeting 
till the conclusion of 30th annual general meeting. 

	 ii. 	 Cost Auditor and their report

The Company is required to maintain cost records for certain products as specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules as amended from 
time to time, and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained in the prescribed manner. Further, 
the said cost records are required to be audited and accordingly M/s. Vadlamudi & Associates, Cost Accountants, 
Tirupati were appointed as cost auditors to audit the cost records for the financial year 2019- 20. The cost audit report 
for FY 2018-19 was filed and the report for 2019-20 will be filed with Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the time limits 
prescribed under the Act.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, your Board has appointed M/s. Vadlamudi & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, Tirupati, Cost Accountants, as cost auditors for the financial year 2020-21 to audit the cost records of the 
Company. Necessary resolution seeking your ratification of their remuneration for the financial year 2020-21 is included 
in the notice of the ensuing annual general meeting.

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   8 29-01-2022   11:52:07



29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   9

	 iii. 	 Internal Auditor

As per Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 
to time, the Company had appointed M/s. Sagar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration: 0003510S) as 
internal auditors for the financial year 2020-21. 

iv. 	 Secretarial Auditor and their report

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed Mr.V.Suresh, Practising Company Secretary 
(C.P.No-6032) to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial Audit 
Report in Form.no-MR-3 from them is annexed herewith as Annexure I. The Secretarial Auditors’ Report does not 
contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

8. 	 DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirm to the best of their 
knowledge and belief that in the preparation of the statement of profit and loss for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 
and the balance sheet as at that date (“financial statements”):

i.	 The applicable accounting standards and Schedule III of the Act have been followed;

ii.	 Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and such judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent have been made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

iii.	 Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities. To ensure this, the Company has established internal control systems, consistent with its 
size and nature of operations, subject to the inherent limitations that should be recognised in weighing the assurance 
provided by any such system of internal controls. These systems are reviewed and updated on an on-going basis. 
Periodic internal audits are conducted to provide reasonable assurance of compliance with these systems. The audit 
committee meets at regular intervals to review the internal audit function;

iv.	 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

v.	 The proper internal financial controls are in place and that such internal financial controls were adequate and were 
operating effectively

vi.	 The systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively.

9.	 INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
NOTIFIED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed format form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as 
Annexure II. The complete annual return is available on the company’s website http://mangalltd.com/.

i. 	 NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND THE ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS

During the year five meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were convened and held in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act. The meetings of the Board were held on April 8, 2019, August 3, 2019, November 12, 2019, 
and February 26, 2020. The details of attendance of each Director at the meetings held during the year are as follows:
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Sl. 
No Name of the Director No of Meetings 

held
No of Meetings 

attended
1 Dr. Ramachandra N Galla, Chairman (Non-Executive)

(DIN : 00133761)
4 4

2 Mr.Jayadev Galla, Vice-Chairman (Non-Executive)
(DIN: 00143610)

4 3

3 Mr. Gourineni Harshavardhana, MD & CEO 
(DIN: 07311410)

4 4

4 Mrs. Galla Padmavathi, Non-Executive Director 
(Non-Executive) (DIN: 00143767) 

4 3

5 Mr. Ashok Galla, Non- Executive Director
(DIN :07304265)

4 3

6 Mr.C.Prasanth, Non-Executive Independent Director
(DIN: 00468442)

4 3

7 Mr.I.B.K.Murthy, Non-Executive Independent Director
(DIN:02774534)

4 4

ii. 	 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

In compliance with the provisions of Sections 135, 177, 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted/ 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The 
details of composition of the Committees, their meeting and attendance of the members are given below.

a. 	 Audit Committee

The constitution and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with and covers all the matters 
specified under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Two meetings of the Committee were held on August 3, 
2019, November 12, 2019 and February 26, 2020. The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of 
each member is given below:

Sl. 
No Name of the Member No of meeting 

held
No of Meetings 

attended
1 Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Chairman 3 3
2 Mr.I.B.K.Murthy, Member 3 3
3 Mr.C.Prasanth, Member 3 2

b.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In compliance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, (Act) the Board had constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee covers all the matters specified in Section 
178 of the Act. One meeting was held on August 3, 2019. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the attendance of each member is given below:

Sl. 
No Name of the Member No of meeting 

held
No of Meetings 

attended
1 Mr.I.B.K.Murthy, Chairman 1 1
2 Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Member 1 1
3 Mr.C.Prasanth, Member 1 1

c. 	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In Compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, (Act) the Board had constituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee covers all the matters specified in Section 
135 of the Act. One meeting of the Committee was held on February 26, 2020. The Composition of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee and the attendance of each member is given below:
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Sl. 
No Name of the Member No of meeting 

held
No of Meetings 

attended
1 Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Chairman 1 1
2 Mr.I.B.K.Murthy, Member 1 1
3 Mr.C.Prasanth, Member 1 1

	 iii. 	 Remuneration to directors

The remuneration structure of Managing Director & CEO comprises of basic salary, commission, perquisites and 
allowances, contribution to provident fund etc. The remuneration is determined considering various factors such as 
qualification, experience, expertise, prevailing remuneration in the industry and the financial position of the Company. 

All Non-Executive Independent Directors except Galla Family are entitled to sitting fee for attending the Board/Committee 
meetings and also for reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for attending the meetings. Further the Non-Executive 
Independent Directors are entitled to sum as decided by the Board as Commission, provided the aggregate of such 
commission shall not exceed 1% of net profits of the Company per annum.

	 iv. 	 Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors approved the Nomination and Remuneration policy. The said policy is applicable to all Directors, 
Key Managerial personnel and senior management personnel of the Company is available on the company’s website 
http://mangalltd.com/

	 v.	 Board evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board Evaluation is not applicable.

10. 	 Corporate Social Responsibilities

As part of “Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives, the Company had undertaken in the areas of Education, 
Environment, Health, water and Sanitation. The CSR initiatives are largely in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

The Company undertakes Corporate Social Responsibility activities through Rajanna Trust and KECA. The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy established by the Board is available on the company’s website http://mangalltd.com/ The Annual 
Report on CSR activities in annexed herewith as Annexure-III

11. 	 Whistle Blower /Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a whistle blower/vigil mechanism to provide an avenue to raise concerns. The mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of it and also for appointment of an 
Ombudsperson who will deal with the complaints received. The policy also lays down the process to be followed for dealing 
with complaints and in exceptional cases, also provides for direct appeal to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The 
Whistle Blower Policy established by the Board is available on the company’s website http://mangalltd.com/ 

12. 	 Prevention of sexual harassment at workplace policy

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (Act). An Internal Compliance Committee (ICC) 
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All women employees are covered under this 
Policy. The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposedoff during the year 2019-20. (a. 
No. of complaints received: Nil, b. No of complaints disposed off: Nil.)

13. 	 Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

As on March 31, 2020 the Company has outstanding unsecured loan(s) of ` 25 crores from RNGalla Family Private Limited 
(Holding Co.,) in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and ` 1.56 crore from Mr.Harshavardhana 
Gourineni, MD & CEO. Please refer the notes to the financial statements for further details.
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14. 	 Particulars of contracts or arrangement with related parties

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of business.

During the financial year 2019-20, there were no materially significant transactions with the related parties which might be 
deemed to have had a potential material conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for transaction with related parties which are of a foreseen and 
repetitive in nature.

The summary statement of transactions entered into with the related parties pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted 
are reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee on a periodical basis. The summary statements are supported by an 
independent audit report certifying that the transactions are at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.

As all the transactions with related parties are on Arm’s length basis and there is no material related party transaction as per 
the policy adopted by the Company, the particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties under Section 188 in 
Form AOC-2 is not required and it is not enclosed herewith.

15. 	 Internal control systems:

The Company has in place adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size and nature of its operations. The 
Company’s internal control system covers the following aspects:

•	 Financial propriety of business transactions

•	 Safeguarding the assets of the Company

•	 Compliance with prevalent statues, management authorisation, policies and procedures of the Company

16. 	 Internal financial controls

The Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of the Financial Statements. The Management assessed the effectiveness of the 
Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting as of March 31, 2020, and the Board believes that the controls are 
adequate.

17. 	 Risk management

The Board discusses the significant business risks and the mitigation steps/action plan to mitigate the same, while reviewing 
the performance of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, there are no major elements of risk which has the potential 
of threatening the existence of the Company. The Company is in the process of development and implementation of a risk 
management policy. 

18. 	 OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. 	 Share capital 

The Paid-up equity share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2020 stood at ̀  13,90,38,770 comprising of 1,39,03,877 
equity shares of ` 10/-each 

b.	 Change in the nature of business

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

c. 	 Reporting of frauds

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit 
Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

d. 	 Regulatory orders

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going concern status 
of the Company and its future operations.
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e. 	 Particulars of employees remuneration:

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

f. 	 Deposits from public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. There are no outstanding 
deposits as on March 31, 2020.

g. 	 Secretarial standards

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of the Board of the Directors (SS-
1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 
Government.

h. 	 Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated and 
foreign exchange Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules 2014, are annexed hereto as Annexure-IV and forms part of this report.

i. 	 Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

There are no subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies.

j.	 Transfer of amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no 
funds required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

k. 	 Acknowledgement

The board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation for the continued assistance and support extended to 
the Company by its customers, vendors, business associates, banks, Government authorities and employees. The 
directors acknowledge with gratitude the encouragement and support extended by the shareholders.

On behalf of the board 
 	

	 Dr. Ramachandra N Galla
Date		 : 27.07.2020 	 Chairman
Place 	 : Hyderabad 	 (DIN: 00133761)
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ANNEXURE-1

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year 2019-20
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
M/s. MANGAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s. MANGAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of M/s. MANGAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and considering the 
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March 2020, complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. MANGAL 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; (NOT APPLICABLE)

(iii) 	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1d992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-

(a) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not 
Applicable)

(b) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable)

(c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not 
Applicable)

(d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014; (Not Applicable To The Company During The Audit Period)

(e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable)

 (f) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable)

(g) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

(h) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not Applicable)
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) 	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
(NOT APPLICABLE)

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Executive Director Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, which is sent at least seven days in 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

For V Suresh Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

	  
 

	 V Suresh
	 Senior Partner

FCS No. 2969
CP.No. 6032

Place	 : Chennai 	 Peer Review Cert. No: 667/2020 
Date		 : 17.07.2020 	 UDIN: F002969B000465398

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   15 29-01-2022   11:52:07



Mangal Industries Limited

16   |  29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

ANNEXURE-II
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. 	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U15122AP1990PLC011932

2 Registration Date 09-11-1990

3 Name of the Company Mangal Industries Limited

4 Address of the Registered office and 
contact details

Renigunta-Cuddapah Road, Karakambadi, 
Tirupati -517520

5 Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having share capital

6 Whether listed company No 

7 Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Subramanian Building, No.1, 
Club House Road, 
Chennai-600002.
Tel. No: 91 44 2846 0390 
Fax. No: 91 44 2846 0129
Email: investor@cameoindia.com

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. 
No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 

Product/ service
% to total turnover 

of the company
1 Manufacture of battery Containers and Covers 2720 73%
2 Manufacture of other fabricated metal products – Metal fasteners 2599 8%
3 Warehousing and Storage 5210 6%

III. 	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of the 
Company CIN/GLN

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of Shares 
Held

Applicable
Section

1 RNGalla Family Private 
Limited, Registered Address: 
SY. No. 692/1, 693/2; 693/3. 
694/2, Karakambadi Village 
and Post, Renigunta Mandal, 
Tirupati, Chittoor District, 
Andhra Pradesh 517520.

U15490AP2017PTC106255 Holding 
Company

100% 2(46)
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	 b) 	 Shareholding of Promoters:	

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

%of total 
share of 

the 
Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

%change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

RNGalla Family 
Private Ltd # 1,39,03,877 100.00 - 1,39,03,877 100.00 - -

Total 1,39,03,877 100.00 - 1,39,03,877 100.00 - -

*	 As on March 31, 2020 the total shareholding is 1,39,03,877 out of which 7 equity shares held by Promoters as 
nominees on behalf of RNGalla Family Private Limited.

	 c)	 Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares %of total share 
of the Company

RNGalla Family Private Limited # 1,39,03,877 100.00 1,39,03,877 100.00

 Total 1,39,03,877 100.00 1,39,03,877 100.00

#	 As on March 31, 2020 the total shareholding is 1,39,03,877 out of which 7 equity shares held by Promoters as 
nominees on behalf of RNGalla Family Private Limited.

d)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 
ADRs): Not applicable.

e) 	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

None of the Directors & KMP holding the equity shares of the Company. As on March 31, 2020 the total shareholding is 
1,39,03,877 out of which 7 equity shares held by Promoters as nominees on behalf of RNGalla Family Private Limited.

V.	 INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amount in `)

Particulars Secured Loans  
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year   
i) 	 Principal Amount 1,69,98,66,798 21,00,00,000 - 1,90,98,66,798 
ii) 	 Interest due but not paid 2,89,866 24,44,302 - 27,34,168 
iii) 	 Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,70,01,56,664 21,24,44,302 - 1,91,26,00,966 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 27,94,32,213 25,56,00,000 - 53,50,32,213 
Reduction * 61,87,77,679 20,00,00,000 - 81,87,77,679 
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) 	 Principal Amount 1,36,05,21,333 26,56,00,000 - 1,62,61,21,333 
ii) 	 Interest due but not paid 1,05,42,713 3,38,115 1,08,80,828 
iii) 	 Interest accrued but not due - - - - 
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,37,10,64,046 26,59,38,115 - 1,63,70,02,161 
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

	 A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:

(Amount in `)
Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ 

Manager Total

Mr. Harshavardhana 
Gourineni

1 Gross salary
(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax Act, 1961
77,40,000 77,40,000

(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
(c)	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax 

Act, 1961
- -

2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity        - -
4 Commission

      - as % of profit 2,57,66,551
- 2,57,66,551

      - others, specify - -
5 Others, please specify

  Total (A)  3,35,06,551  3,35,06,551 
  Ceiling as per the Act - Shall not exceed 5% of the net 

profits of the Company calculated under Section 198 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

 3,35,06,551 

B.	 Remuneration to other directors:

(Amount in `)
Sl. 
No Particulars of Remuneration Mr.IBK.Murthy Mr.C.Prasanth Total

1 Independent Directors 
  Fee for attending board / committee meetings 60,000 42,500 1,02,500
  Commission 100,000 100,000 200,000
  Others, please specify - - -

Total (1) 160,000 142,500 3,02,500
2 Other Non- Executive Directors 

Dr.Ramachandra N Galla - - -
Mr.Jayadev Galla - - -
Mrs. Padmavathi Galla - - -
Mr. Ashok Galla - - -

  Fee for attending board / committee meetings - - -
  Commission - - -
  Others, please specify - - -
  Total (2) - - -
  Total (B)=(1+2) 160,000 142,500 3,02,500

Overall Ceiling as per the Act – Shall not exceed 
1% of the net profits of the Company calculated 
under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

67,01,310
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	 C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

(Amount in `)

Sl. 
no. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

MD & CEO CFO Company 
Secretary

Total
Mr.Harshavardhana 

Gourineni
Mr.G. Satish 

Kumar
Mr. P. 

Ravikumar
1 Gross salary
  a.	 Salary as per provisions contained 

in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

77,40,000 33,36,674 16,30,231 1,27,06,905

  b.	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- 67,944 - 67,944

  c.	 Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity        - - -
4 Commission - - -
        - as % of profit  2,57,66,551 - 2,57,66,551

        - others, specify - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

  Total 3,35,06,551 34,04,618 16,30,231 3,84,73,456

VII. 	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended March 31, 2020.

On behalf of the board 
 	

	  Dr. Ramachandra N Galla
Date 	 : 27.07.2020	  Chairman
Place 	 : Hyderabad	  (DIN: 00133761)
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ANNEXURE-III
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.
The broad focus areas of the Company are as follows: 
a.	  Education
b.	  Health
c.	  Environment 
d.	  Rural Development

The activities under the Education include primary, secondary and higher education, skill development of rural youth, 
providing scholarships to meritorious students of underprivileged and promoting preventive healthcare activities such 
as providing safe and healthy drinking water, aiding hospitals etc. 
Web link: http://mangalltd.com/TheGroupCorporateResponsibility.html 

2.	 Composition of the CSR Committee:

Name Category
Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Chairman Non-Executive Director
Mr.I.B.K.Murthy, Member Non-Executive and Independent Director
Mr.C.Prasanth, Member Non-Executive and Independent Director

3.	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: 	 ` 62,88,73,573
4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the Average Net Profit as in item 3 above): 	 ` 1,25,77,471/- 
5.	 Details of CSR spend for the financial year:

a.	 Total amount spent for the financial year	 : ` 1,25,92,226/-
b.	 Amount unspent, if any	 : NIL
c.	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

CSR project or activity identified

Sector
in

which
the

Project
is 

covered

Projects or 
programs
(1) Local area or 

other
(2) Specify the State 

and district 
where projects 
or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 

or programs
Sub – heads: 

(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent: 
Direct or through

implementing 
agency*

New Building for Mangal Vidyalayam – Senior Second-
ary School at Mangal Junior College Educational Com-
plex at Petamitta Location, Chittoor District (Project)

Education Chittoor District,
Andhra Pradesh

1,21,92,226 1,21,92,226       - Rajanna Trust

Financial support for meritorious and deserving 
students

Education Chittoor District,
Andhra Pradesh

4,00,000 4,00,000       - Krishnadevaraya 
Educational and 
Cultural Association 
(KECA)

6.	 In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years 
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

	 Not Applicable
7. 	 A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in 

compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.
We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CSR objectives and CSR policy 
of the Company.

On behalf of the board 
 

	 Dr. Ramachandra N Galla 	 Harshavardhana Gourineni 
Date : 27.07.2020 	 Chairman 	 MD & CEO 
Place : Hyderabad 	 (DIN: 00133761) 	 (DIN : 07311410)
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Annexure-IV

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
(A) 	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-

	 (i)	 the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 

•	 250W Metal Halide Lights are replaced with 135W LED lights.

•	 Sprue Pickers are introduced for Automatic Operation of Machines ensuring consistent Cycle times.

•	 Heaters used in Phosphating Process are upgraded form SS316 – 27 KW to Titanium – 18 KW, reducing power 
consumption and increasing their life.

•	 Automatic Solenoid Valves provided to control pneumatic air wastage in all flat rolling machines.

•	 Hot water generator introduced in place of electrical Heating for pre-cleaning process in Electro Plating.

•	 Gravity feed pumps, Degreasing-cum-Phosphating chemical systems, Hydraulic Cutter introduced in the pre-
treatment process.

•	 Sprue Pickers are introduced for Automatic Operation of Machines ensuring consistent Cycle times

	 (ii) 	 the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

		  •	 Majority of power consumption is derived from Solar power suppliers with aggregating 5MW.

		  •	 Introduced renewable natural energy source of Biomass Briquettes in SS SBU

(iii) 	 the capital investment on energy conservation equipment(s): The Company made capital investment on below 
energy conservation equipment aggregating ` 1,75,83,981/- 

•	 High bay LED lamps 135W

•	 Hot water generator 

•	 Expenditure towards Sprue Pickers 

•	 LED Lights Replacement Cost 

•	 Thermic fluid heater for Powder coating process,

(B) 	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

1. Efforts made towards 
technology absorption

BC SBU:
- 	Multi Slide Die Casting Technology introduced for Lead Bush Manufacturing, Auto Hole 

Punching & Screen Printing Machine, Auto Vent Seal and Porous Insertion Machine. 
AC SBU : 
- 	Automatic Alkaline Zinc/Zinc-Iron Plating Plant - 22MT/Day
MF SBU : 
- 	Fiber Laser Cutting Machine from Trumpf for Energy Efficient and Cost Efficient 

Operation.
SS SBU:
- 	Implemented Robot Welding in fabrication.
- 	Introduced new SIGMA beams instead of heavy ISMB Channels for mezzanine range.
- 	Implemented additional sensors for CT conveyor to reduce the collision of Load Bars 

in PC line.
2. The benefits 

derived like product 
improvement, cost 
reduction, product 
development or import 
substitution;

BC SBU:
- 	Consistent Product Quality, Reduced Cycle time, Man Power Optimization, Complete 

Automatic Operation, Reduced Design Wastages, Improved energy Efficiency.
AC SBU : 
-	 Reduction of Specific energy consumption, Consistent Product quality and fully 

Automatic Operation.
MF & SS SBU : Lower operating cost
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3. in case of imported 
technology (imported 
during the last three 
years reckoned from 
the beginning of the
financial year)-
(a) 	the details of 

technology 
imported;

(b) 	the year of import;
(c) 	whether the 

technology been 
fully absorbed;

(d) 	if not fully 
absorbed, areas 
where absorption 
has not taken 
place, and the 
reasons thereof;

AC SBU :
IGBT Rectifiers.
(a) 	IGBT controller for power savings.
(b) 	FY19
(c) 	Yes, power savings are witnessed.
Centrifugal Driers.
(a) 	Top air blow with centrifuge action for zero heat wastage.
(b) 	FY19.
(c) 	Yes, Productivity improvement.
Passivation Transporters 
(Tilting Upper cart).
(a) 	Basket spin and tilt with 45° angle.
(b) 	FY19.
(c) 	Yes, Product quality improved.
BC SBU :
(a) 	Multi Slide Die Casting technology
(b) 	2019
(c) 	Yes

	 Expenditure on Research & Development:	 (` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
a) Capital Nil  Nil
b) Recurring Nil  Nil
Total Nil  Nil

	 Forging Exchange Earning and Outgo:	 (` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Foreign exchange used 96.54 136.65
Foreign exchange earned 4.33 0.09

 

On behalf of the board 
 	
		  	  Dr. Ramachandra N Galla
Date : 27.07.2020	  Chairman
Place : Hyderabad	  (DIN: 00133761)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
Mangal Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mangal Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Cash Flow 
Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report 
and Annexures to the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it 
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 
and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
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e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its Managing Director and its Independent Directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For BRAHMAYYA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(F.R.N. 000513S)

Karumanchi Rajaj
Date		 : 27.07.2020 	 Partner
Place	 : Vijayawada 	 Membership No. 202309

UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report of even date)

(i)	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets. 

(b)	 The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme 
of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination 
of the registered sale deed/ Government Orders provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the 
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company.

In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as property, plant and equipment 
in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee 
in the agreement.

(ii)	 The inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been physically verified by the Management 
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. For stocks lying with third parties at the year 
end, written confirmations have been obtained. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and 
the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the books of account.

(iii)	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iv)	 The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence reporting under clause (iv) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit falling within the 
purview of the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi)	 The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. 
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate 
or complete. 

(vii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a)	 The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, GST, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 
authorities. 

(b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(c)	 Details of dues of Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 
on account of disputes are given below:

(` Lakhs)

SI 
No. Name of Statute Nature of Dues

Forum where 
Dispute is 
Pending

Period to which 
the Amount 

Relates

Amount 
Involved

Amount 
Unpaid

1 Central Excise 
Act,1944

Denial of the benefit of Duty 
exemption

CESTAT, 
Hyderabad

2010-15 237.51 225.48

2 AP General sales 
tax Act, 1957

Levy of Tax on Consumables 
used in Job Work

AP Sales Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

2001-02 5.50 1.12

3 AP VATAct,2005 Denial of Input Credit AP Sales Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

2008-10 20.97 10.48
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(viii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment 
of dues to Banks. However, the company has not raised any funds from financial institutions and Government and also not 
raised funds by way of issue of debentures.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer and term loans were applied for the purpose which the loans were obtained. 

(x)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and 
no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided managerial 
remuneration to its Managing Director and to its Independent Directors in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(xii)	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 177 
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards.

(xiv)	During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi)	The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BRAHMAYYA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(F.R.N. 000513S)

Karumanchi Rajaj
Date	 : 27.07.2020 	 Partner
Place	 : Vijayawada 	 Membership No. 202309

UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mangal Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BRAHMAYYA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(F.R.N. 000513S)

Date	 : 27.07.2020 	 Partner
Place	 : Vijayawada 	 Membership No. 202309

UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
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Notes As at 
31st March, 2020 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  41,658.29  40,606.46 
Right-of-use asset 3  1,416.40  - 
Capital work-in-progress 3  2,798.17  3,056.99 
Other intangible assets 3  588.26  54.96 
Financial assets

(i)	 Investments -  -  - 
(ii) 	 Loans 4  336.46  301.50 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5  -  - 
Other non current assets 6  370.95  809.15 

Total Non-Current assets  47,168.53  44,829.06 

Current assets
Inventories 7  8,489.34  8,313.79 
Financial assets

(i) 	 Trade receivables 8A  6,063.61  6,786.33 
(ii) 	 Cash and cash equivalents 8B  11.35  2.94 
(iii) 	 Bank balances other than above 8C  1,210.84  237.70 
(iv) 	 Other financial assets 8D  233.71  215.28 

Current tax assets(Net) 9  -  - 
Other current assets 10  878.93  1,553.30 

Total Current assets  16,887.77  17,109.34 
Total assets  64,056.30  61,938.40 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11  1,390.39  1,390.39 
Other equity 12  30,950.00  27,493.78 

Total equity  32,340.39  28,884.17 

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) 	 Borrowings 13A  10,261.60  9,279.25 
(ii) 	 Lease Liability 13B  94.28  - 
Provisions 14  600.86  443.32 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5  3,772.53  2,927.86 
Total Non-current liabilities  14,729.27  12,650.43 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) 	 Borrowings 15  1,875.41  6,181.19 
(ii) 	 Trade payables

(a) 	 total outstanding dues to micro enterprise and small enterprises 16A  833.44  449.28 
(b) 	 total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
16A  8,025.76  6,903.38 

(iii) 	 Other financial liabilities 16B  5,509.40  5,402.26 
(iv) 	 Lease Liability 13B  29.78  - 

Provisions 14  93.94  85.59 
Other current liabilities 17  544.10  1,272.56 
Current tax liabilities(Net) 9  74.81  109.54 

Total current liabilities  16,986.64  20,403.80 
Total equity and liabilities  64,056.30  61,938.40 
Corporate Information 1
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 26 to 43

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the board

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,	 Dr Ramachandra N Galla	 Harshavardhana Gourineni
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman	 Managing Director and Chief Executive officer
Firm Registration No.: 000513S	 (DIN No:00133761)	 (DIN No:07311410)

(Karumanchi Rajaj)	 G.Satish Kumar	 P Ravi Kumar 
Partner	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 202309
UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
Place 	 : Hyderabad	 Place 	 : Hyderabad
Date 	 : 27.07.2020	 Date 	 : 27.07.2020

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Mangal Industries Limited
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Particulars  Notes  Year Ended  
31st March, 2020 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2019 

Revenue
Revenue from operations 18  81,939.28  88,447.58 
Other income 19  413.07  255.40 
Total Income  82,352.35  88,702.97 
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 20  52,770.52  60,091.87 
Purchase of stock in trade 20  376.22  - 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-
in-trade 21  (71.55)  (883.64)
Employee benefits expense 22  9,279.40  8,337.01 
Finance costs 23  1,663.81  1,810.58 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 24  3,124.39  2,647.54 
Other expenses 25  8,665.33  9,277.96 
Total expenses  75,808.12  81,281.31 
Profit before tax  6,544.23  7,421.66 
Income tax expense 28
Current tax  1,190.00  1,568.00 
Deferred tax  908.63  1,015.74 

 2,098.63  2,583.74 
Profit for the year  4,445.60  4,837.92 
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement of Employee defined benefit plans(net of Tax) 27  (117.76)  (92.33)
Other comprehensive income for the year  (117.76)  (92.33)
Total comprehensive income for the year  4,327.84  4,745.59 

Earnings per equity share 29
Basic & diluted  31.97  34.80 
Nominal value per equity share  10.00  10.00 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements. 26 to 43

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the board

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,	 Dr Ramachandra N Galla	 Harshavardhana Gourineni
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman	 Managing Director and Chief Executive officer
Firm Registration No.: 000513S	 (DIN No:00133761)	 (DIN No:07311410)

(Karumanchi Rajaj)	 G.Satish Kumar	 P Ravi Kumar 
Partner	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 202309
UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
Place 	 : Hyderabad	 Place 	 : Hyderabad
Date 	 : 27.07.2020	 Date 	 : 27.07.2020
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Particulars  For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020 

 For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

I.	 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax from continuing operations  6,544.23  7,421.66 

Add/Less: Adjustments for:

a. 	 Depreciation  3,124.39  2,647.54 

b. 	 Interest expenses  1,663.81  1,810.57 

c. 	 Interest received  (208.21)  (111.70)

d.	 Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets  11.87  99.24 

e.	 Assets Written off  103.91  - 

f.	 Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation  (117.76)  (141.93)

 4,578.01  4,303.72 

Operating profit before working capital changes  11,122.25  11,725.38 

Add/Less: Adjustments for working capital changes

a. 	 Decrease/(increase) in inventories  (175.55)  (1,785.56)

b. 	 Decrease/(increase) in trade and Other receivables  1,759.25  350.03 

c. 	 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  493.90  4,864.73 

 2,077.59  3,429.20 

Cash generated from operations  13,199.84  15,154.58 

Less : Direct taxes paid  1,228.79  1,445.61 

Net cash from operating activities - A  11,971.05  13,708.97 

II.	 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

a. 	 Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (6,099.94)  (7,796.27)

b. 	 (Increase)/decrease in capital work in progress  221.60  158.96 

c. 	 Proceeds from Sale of Tangible Assets  7.23  6.04 

d. 	 Interest received  208.21  111.70 

e. 	 Margin money deposits with banks and other balances  (973.13)  (105.36)

Net Cash from / (Used in) investing activities - B  (6,636.02)  (7,624.93)

Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   34 29-01-2022   11:52:08



29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   35

Cash flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars  For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020 

 For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

III.	 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

a. 	 Increase/(decrease) in borrowings  (2,766.21)  (3,591.95)

b. 	 Interest expenses  (1,653.50)  (1,810.57)

c. 	 Repayment of lease liability  (35.28)  - 

d. 	 Dividend and dividend distribution tax paid  (871.62)  (712.38)

Net cash from / (Used in) financing activities - C  (5,326.61)  (6,114.90)

Net cash flow from / (Used in) all activities (A+B+C)  8.41  (30.86)

Opening cash and bank balances  2.94  33.79 

Add: Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  8.41  (30.86)

Closing cash and bank balances (Note No:8B)  11.35  2.94 

i) 	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under “Indirect method” as set out in Ind AS-7 “Statement of 
cash flows”.

ii) 	 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

31 March 2019  Net Cash 
Flows 

 Non Cash 
Changes 31 March 2020

Borrowings  19,195.32 (2,844.29)  -  16,351.02 
Total liabilities from financing activities  19,195.32 (2,844.29)  -  16,351.02 

31 March 2018  Net Cash 
Flows 

 Non Cash 
Changes 31 March 2019

Borrowings  23,270.63 (4,075.32)  -  19,195.32 
Total liabilities from financing activities  23,270.63 (4,075.32)  -  19,195.32 

As per our report of even date attached	 For and on behalf of the board

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,	 Dr Ramachandra N Galla	 Harshavardhana Gourineni
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman	 Managing Director and Chief Executive officer
Firm Registration No.: 000513S	 (DIN No:00133761)	 (DIN No:07311410)

(Karumanchi Rajaj)	 G.Satish Kumar	 P Ravi Kumar 
Partner	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary
Membership No.: 202309
UDIN No.: 20202309AAAABX3187
Place 	 : Hyderabad	 Place 	 : Hyderabad
Date 	 : 27.07.2020	 Date 	 : 27.07.2020

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   35 29-01-2022   11:52:08



Mangal Industries Limited

36   |  29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

(a
)

 E
qu

ity
 s

ha
re

 c
ap

ita
l

Eq
ui

ty
 S

ha
re

s 
of

 `
 1

0 
ea

ch
 is

su
ed

, s
ub

sc
rib

ed
 a

nd
 fu

lly
 p

ai
d

N
um

be
r o

f S
ha

re
s

 A
m

ou
nt

 

A
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
 1

3,
90

3,
87

7 
 1

,3
90

.3
9 

A
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

0
 1

3,
90

3,
87

7 
 1

,3
90

.3
9 

(b
)

 O
th

er
 e

qu
ity

 

R
es

er
ve

s 
&

 S
ur

pl
us

C
ap

ita
l  

R
es

er
ve

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 
Pr

em
iu

m

C
ap

ita
l 

R
ed

em
pt

io
n 

R
es

er
ve

G
en

er
al

 
R

es
er

ve
 R

et
ai

ne
d 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 

O
th

er
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

in
co

m
e

To
ta

l

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8
 1

78
.5

4 
 3

,8
48

.2
0 

 4
.2

8 
 1

,6
46

.3
2 

 1
9,

03
0.

59
 

 (1
23

.7
1)

 2
4,

58
4.

21
 

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 4
,8

37
.9

2 
 - 

 4
,8

37
.9

2 

R
e-

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 d
efi

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
 

pl
an

s
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 (9
2.

33
)

 (9
2.

33
)

D
iv

id
en

d
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 (5

90
.9

1)
 - 

 (5
90

.9
1)

D
iv

id
en

d 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
ta

x 
pa

id
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 (1

21
.4

6)
 - 

 (1
21

.4
6)

Tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

du
e 

to
 d

e-
m

er
ge

r (
re

fe
r n

ot
e 

34
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 (1
,1

23
.6

4)
 - 

 (1
,1

23
.6

4)

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
 1

78
.5

4 
 3

,8
48

.2
0 

 4
.2

8 
 1

,6
46

.3
2 

 2
2,

03
2.

49
 

 (2
16

.0
4)

 2
7,

49
3.

78
 

Pr
ofi

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 4
,4

45
.6

0 
 - 

 4
,4

45
.6

0 

R
e-

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 d
efi

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
 

pl
an

s
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 (1
17

.7
6)

 (1
17

.7
6)

D
iv

id
en

d
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 (7

23
.0

0)
 - 

 (7
23

.0
0)

D
iv

id
en

d 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
ta

x 
pa

id
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 (1

48
.6

2)
 - 

 (1
48

.6
2)

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
02

0
 1

78
.5

4 
 3

,8
48

.2
0 

 4
.2

8 
 1

,6
46

.3
2 

 2
5,

60
6.

48
 

 (3
33

.8
0)

 3
0,

95
0.

00
 

 N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1s

t M
ar

 2
02

0 
		


(A

ll 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 `
 la

kh
s,

 e
xc

ep
t f

or
 s

ha
re

 d
at

a 
or

 a
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
st

at
ed

)

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   36 29-01-2022   11:52:08



29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   37

1	 Corporate information

Mangal Industries Limited is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Renigunta kadapa Road,Karakambad
i,Tirupathi,Andhra Pradesh - 517520.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of Manufacture of Battery containers & covers, Manufacture of other 
fabricated metal products, Warehousing/ storage Racking and Custom Fabrication, Auto Components and Toolworks.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27th July’2020.

2	 Significant accounting policies

2.1	 Basis of Preparation

A) 	 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

B) 	 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities 
which have been measured at fair value:

- 	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 
instruments),

- 	 employee defined benefit assets/liability recognized as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, and 
actuarial losses/gains, and the present value of defined benefit obligation.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except 
when otherwise indicated.

2.2	 Summary of significant accounting policies

a.	 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is:

- 	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- 	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- 	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when:

- 	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- 	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- 	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

- 	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b.	 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — 	 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

- Level 2 — 	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — 	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external 
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

On an interim basis, the Management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee.This includes a 
discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant 
notes.

- 	 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 27) 

- 	 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)

- 	 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 33)

c.	 Foreign Currency Transaction

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   38 29-01-2022   11:52:08



29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   39

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average 
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting 
date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 

d.	 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. 

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the 
customer, which is generally when the title passes to the customer, either upon shipment or upon receipt of goods 
by the customer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the transaction price which is the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns, taxes and applicable trade discounts and allowances. Revenue includes 
shipping and handling costs billed to the customer.

Rendering of services

Revenue from sale of service is recognised as the performance obligations are satisfied in accordance with the 
agreement/agreements with the customer.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the 
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial 
assets in section (n) for details of measurement. 

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services 
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever 
is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. Such 
contract liabilities are disclosed as Advances from customer in the Balance sheet.

e.	 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable 
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the 
year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the 
concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit 
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created 
by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews 
the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

f.	 Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and equipment is 
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the 
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to 
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, 
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in 
profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use 
is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Depreciation on all Property,Plant and equipment has been provided under straight line method as per the useful 
lives as specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013, except in case of the following assets in which case the 
life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice taking into the nature of asset, the estimated usage 
of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, maintenance support etc.,

Lab equipment:	 - 	 Distallation apparatus – 1 year

Equipment:		  - 	 Air curtains, plastics crates, ORP transmitter, Pre-form core, Moulds– 3 years

				    - 	 wooden pallets, PH Meter, Lumino Meter, Vaccum Cleaner, Water level indicators, 
Pneumatic grease gun, VFD, Mandrel Assembly –5 years

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 
is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g.	 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

h.	 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

i.	 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether, (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of 
the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows.

j.	 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its 
present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

 - 	 Raw materials, Consumables and spares : cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

 - 	 Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes all direct cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads 
based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis.

 - 	 Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 k.	 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
Company’s of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. For 
assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the 
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Goodwill is tested for 
impairment annually as at each reporting date and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired.

l.	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligation which will be confirm only by future events not wholly 
within the control of the company or (ii) Present obligation arising from past event where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation for a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
cannot be made. The company does not recognise contingent liabilities but the same are disclosed in notes.

m.	 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. Company’s contribution to 
Employee’s Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance are made under a defined contribution plan and 
are accounted at actual cost in the year of accrual. Provident Fund contribution are made to the Government 
administered Provident Fund towards which the company has no further obligation beyond its monthly contribution.

Company’s contribution to superannuation fund in respect of employees who are members are made under a 
defined contribution plan, being administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India and are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss Account at actual cost in the year in which employees have rendered service.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements 
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

 - 	 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

 - 	 The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss:

 - 	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and 

 - 	 Net interest expense or income

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. The Company treats accumulated leave, 
as a long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such accumulated leaves are provided for based on 
an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period-end/ year-end. 

n.	 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 Financial assets

i. 	 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash 
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied 
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case 
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not 
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are 
measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 
(d) Revenue from contracts with customers. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in 
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting 
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

ii. 	 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

- 	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

- 	 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- 	 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

 - 	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

iii. 	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) 	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and

b) 	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 
in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

iv. 	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) 	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and

b) 	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in 
the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income 
using the EIR method.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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v. 	 Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost 
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the 
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

vi. 	 Equity investments

All equity investments within the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which 
Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

vii. 	 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) 
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- 	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- 	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset it evaluates if and to what extent 
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise 
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised 
cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. The Company follows ‘simplified 
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified approach 
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment 
loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flow, an entity is required to consider:

i) 	 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected 
life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument 
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial 
instrument.

ii) 	 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio 
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected 
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the 
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. 

Financial liabilities 

i. 	 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, 
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts.

ii. 	 Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated 
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. There are no such liabilities held for 
trading or designated by the Company.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there 
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

o.	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

p.	 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent 
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the 
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding 
amount is recognised directly in equity.

q.	 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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3 Right-of-use asset  Leasehold Land Buildings Total
A) 	 At March 31, 2019  -  -  - 

Additions during the year  - 149.02 149.02
Reclassified and Transition impact on account of 
adoption of Ind AS 116 

 1,340.33  -  1,340.33 

Eliminated on disposal/adjustment of assets  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2020  1,340.33  149.02  1,489.35 

(B) 	 Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
At March 31, 2019  -  -  - 
Reclassified and Transition impact on account of 
adoption of Ind AS 116 

 27.59  -  27.59 

Depreciation expense  13.08  32.26  45.34 
Eliminated on disposal/adjustment of assets  -  -  - 
At March 31, 2020  40.67  32.26  72.93 

(C) 	 Net Book Value 
At March 31, 2020  1,299.65  116.76  1,416.40 
At March 31, 2019  -  -  - 

4 Loans
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Non Current
Security Deposit  336.46  301.50 

 336.46  301.50 
The above does not include any amount due from directors or other officers of the 
company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any other loans are 
due from firms or private company in which any director is a partner, a director or a 
member.
Of above :
Loans considered good - Secured  -  - 
Loans considered good - Unsecured  336.46  301.50 
Loans wich have significant increase in credit risk  -  - 
Loans - Credit impaired  -  - 

 336.46  301.50 

5 Deferred tax assets / Liabilities (net)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Deferred tax liabilties (net) - refer note 28  3,772.53  2,927.86 
 3,772.53  2,927.86 

6 Other Non current Assets
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Capital advances  365.88  809.06 
Prepayment  5.06  0.09 

 370.95  809.15 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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7 Inventories 
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Raw materials  2,439.15  3,185.39 
Add: Raw materials in transit  -  147.70 
Total Raw Material  2,439.15  3,333.09 
Work-in-progress  1,457.86  1,419.59 
Finished goods  1,798.37  1,765.08 
Stock-in-trade  -  - 
Stores and Spares  2,247.44  1,408.33 
Loose Tools  447.83  360.66 
Others  98.70  27.04 

 8,489.34  8,313.79 
Notes
i) 	 The cost of inventories recongnised as an expense during the year has been disclosed in Note No: 20,21 and 25.
ii) 	 There are no inventories expected to be liquidated after more than 12 months.
iii) 	 No inventory has been written down to its net realisable value.
iv) 	 The mode of valuation of invenotries has been stated in Note No: J of significant accounting policies.

8A Trade Receivables
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current
(a) 	 Considered good - Secured  -  - 
(b) 	 Considered good - Unsecured  6,063.61  6,786.33 
(c) 	 Which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -  - 
(d) 	 Credit impaired  344.50  128.22 
	 Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (344.50)  (128.22)

 6,063.61  6,786.33 

 i) 	 There average credit period for receivables is in the range of 0-90 days, No interest is charged on overdue receivables 
except for over due balances of related parties. 

ii) 	 The company’s largest customer is Amara Raja Batteries Limited and amount of ` 228.08 Lakhs is receivable from 
said customer as on 31st March’ 2020 (as at 31st Mar’ 2019 ` 378.32 Lakhs).Further an amount of ` 1901.24 Lakhs 
(as at 31st Mar’ 2019 ` 3154.96 Lakhs) is due from customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of 
trade receivables.

iii) 	 The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for doubtful trade 
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience for 
forward-looking estimates. The expected loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables which are due and 
the rates used in the provision matrix.

iv) 	 Dues from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. Refer 
Note 32.

v) 	 For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 32.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
8B Cash and cash equivalents

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Balances with bank - in current accounts  6.27  0.09 
Cash on Hand  5.08  2.84 

 11.35  2.94 
8C Other bank balances

Margin money deposits  1,210.84  237.70 
 1,210.84  237.70 

Other Financial Asset (Unsecured and considered good)
8D Current

Interest receivables  233.71  215.28 
 233.71  215.28 

Break up of financial asset carried at amortised cost
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Trade Receivables (Note No. 8A)  6,063.61  6,786.33 
Cash & cash equivalents (Note No.8B & 8C)  1,222.19  240.64 
Loans (Note No. 4)  336.46  301.50 
Other financial asset (Note No.8D)  233.71  215.28 
Total financial asset carried at amortised cost  7,855.96  7,543.75 

9 Current Tax Asset
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Advance Tax (net of provision)  -  - 

10 Other Current Asset
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Material & Other advances  437.75  1,366.83 
Prepayment  146.45  120.77 
Balances with government authorities  294.73  65.70 

 878.93  1,553.30 

11 Share Capital

Authorised 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

15,000,000 (31 March 2020: 15,000,000, 31 March 2019: 15,000,000) equity shares 
of ` 10 each

 1,500.00  1,500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

13,903,877 (31 March 2020: 13,903,877, 31 March 2019: 13,903,877) equity shares 
of ` 10 each

 1,390.39  1,390.39 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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a) 	 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the Year

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Equity share capital

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  13,903,877  13,903,877 

Add : Further issue of shares on Rights basis  -  - 

Less: Bought Back during the year  -  - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  13,903,877  13,903,877 

(b) 	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining 
assets of the company after distribution of preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in the Company:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Number of 
shares

% of holding Number of 
shares

% of holding

Equity shares:

RNGalla Family Private Limited  13,903,877 100.00%  13,903,877 100.00%

d) 	 The company is a wholly owned subsidary to RNGalla Family Private Limited .

e) 	 None of the shares were issued in pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

f) 	 No bonus shares were issued during the period of last five financial years.

12 Other Equity 
Total

As at 31 March 2019  27,493.78 
Profit for the year 4,445.60 
Other comprehensive income (117.76)
Cash dividend (723.00)
Dividend distribution tax (148.62)
As at 31 March 2020  30,950.00 

Item of other comprehensive income 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening balance (216.04)  (123.71)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation(net of tax) (117.76) (92.33)

(333.80) (216.04)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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i Capital Reserve
The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments 
to capital reserve.

ii Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve is created out of securities premium account for the buy back of shares.

iii Securities Premium Reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited 
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

iv General Reserve
Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at 
a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations.Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, 
the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. 
However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific 
requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

v Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the company and can be utilised in accordance with 
the provisions of the compnies Act,2013.

vi. Distribution made and proposed
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Cash dividend on equity share declared and proposed
Dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31st March 2018 declared and 
distributed during the financial year 2019-20 and 2018-19 respectively.

 723.00  590.91 

DDT on final dividend  148.62  121.46 
 871.62  712.38 

Proposed dividends on Equity shares:
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27.07.2020 have recommended a dividend of ` 1.6/- per equity share of face 
value of ` 10/- each for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020. The above is subject to approval at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and hence is not recognized as a liability.

13A  Borrowings - Non current
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

i) 	 Secured
a) 	 Term Loans from bank

- State Bank of India  7,515.80  9,185.48 
ii) 	 UnSecured

a) 	 Sales Tax Deferrment  89.80  93.77 
b) 	 Loan from related parties

 - RN Galla Family Private Limited  2,500.00  - 
 - Harshavardhana Gourineni (MD and CEO)  156.00  - 

 10,261.60  9,279.25 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
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Details of Securities offered, Rate of Interest and Manner of repayment of above Term loans :

Name of the bank Rate of interest Repayment Security
State Bank of India 8.70% Quarterly

2020-21 - 2184.00
2021-22 - 2115.80

Primary : First parri passu charge on all fixed assets of the 
company except the fixed assets Purchased from Andhra 
Bank.
Exclusive charge on all fixed assets and Plant and Machinery 
(Created out of bank finance) of the company. 
1. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building (Battery Components & 

Metal Frabrication SBU) at Karakambadi.
2. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building(Battery Components & 

Auto components SBU) at Petamitta.
3. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building (Storage Solutions 

SBU) at Tenepalli.
4. 	 EM of First Charge of Leasehold rights on factory Land 

& building at ARGC,Nunegundlapalli.
Collateral : 
(a) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the 

company along with Andhra Bank.
(b) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the current assets of the 

company along with Andhra Bank and City Bank.
Lein on STDR Standing in the name of Shri Ramachandra 
Naidu Galla for ` 53 Lakhs.
Personal guarantee of Dr. Ramachandra N Galla, Sri 
Jayadev Galla, Dr. G.Rama Devi, Smt.Padmavathi Galla 
and Smt.Aruna Kumari Galla.

State Bank of India 8.00% Quarterly
2020-21 - 1280.00
2021-22 -1280.00
2022-23 - 1280.00
2023-24 - 1280.00
2024-25 -1280.00
2025-26 - 280.00

Primary : First parri passu charge on all fixed assets of the 
company except the fixed assets Purchased from Andhra 
Bank.
Exclusive charge on all fixed assets and Plant and 
Machinery (Created out of bank finance) of the company.
1. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building (Battery Components & 

Metal Frabrication SBU) at Karakambadi.
2. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building(Battery Components & 

Auto components SBU) at Petamitta.
3. 	 EM of Factory Land & Building (Storage Solutions 

SBU) at Tenepalli.
4. 	 EM of First Charge of Leasehold rights on factory 

Land & building at ARGC,Nunegundlapalli. 
Collateral : 
(a) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire fixed assets 

of the company along with Andhra Bank.
(b) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the current assets of 

the company along with Andhra Bank and City 
Bank.

Lein on STDR Standing in the name of Shri Ramachandra 
Naidu Galla for ` 53 Lakhs.
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Name of the bank Rate of interest Repayment Security
Personal guarantee of Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Sri 
Jayadev Galla, Dr. G.Rama Devi, Smt.Padmavathi Galla 
and Smt.Aruna Kumari Galla

State Bank of India 8.70% Quaterly 
2020 - 21 -750.00

Primary : Extension of First charge on current assets of 
company.
Collateral :
(a) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the 

company along with Andhra Bank.
(b) 	 2nd pari-passu charge on the current assets of the 

company along with Andhra Bank and Citi Bank.
Lein on STDR Standing in the name of Shri Ramachandra 
Naidu Galla for ` 53 Lakhs.
Personal guarantee of Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Sri 
Jayadev Galla, Dr. G.Rama Devi, Smt.Padmavathi Galla 
and Smt.Aruna Kumari Galla.

The details of interest free sales tax deferement as follows:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Balance as at the beginning of the Year  93.77  96.65 
Repayments made during the year  3.97  - 
Closing balance as at the end of the Year  89.80  96.65 
Current portion in above balance  -  2.87 
Non-current portion in above balance  89.80  93.77 
Note : No defaults were made in the repayment of above loans.

Unsecured loan from holding company RNGalla family Private Limited is replayable on or before 30th April 2021 and carry 
ROI @ 11%. 
Unsecured loan from Managing Director Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni is replayable on or before 31st March 2022 and 
carry ROI @ 11% 

13B Lease Liability
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Non current
Lease Liability  94.28  - 

 94.28  - 
Current
Lease Liability  29.78  - 

 29.78  - 
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14 Provisions
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Non current
Provision for employee benefits 
	 - Gratuity (refer note 28(b))  164.83  117.42 
	 - Leave Encashment  436.03  325.90 

 600.86  443.32 
Current
Provision for employee benefits 
	 - Gratuity (refer note 28(b))  84.32  74.42 
	 - Leave Encashment  9.62  11.16 

 93.94  85.59 

15 Current borrowings

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)
i) 	 Secured
	 (a) 	 Bank overdrafts / Cash Credit

	 - State Bank of India  1,540.04  2,454.21 
	 - Andhra Bank  71.89  772.44 
	 - Citi Bank  263.49  854.55 
(b) 	 Current Maturities of long term loan

- State Bank of India  4,214.00  3,254.00 
- Andhra Bank  -  478.00 
- Interest free sales tax deferrment  -  2.87 

ii) 	 Unsecured
Loan from related parties (unsecured)
- RN Galla Family Private Limited  -  2,000.00 
- Harshavardhana Gourineni (MD and CEO)  -  100.00 

Total current borrowing  6,089.41  9,916.06 
Less: Amount grouped under “Other current financial liabilities”  (4,214.00)  (3,734.87)
Net Current Borrowings  1,875.41  6,181.19 
Aggregate secured borrowings  13,605.21  16,998.67 
Aggregate unsecured borrowings  2,745.80  2,196.65 

Details of Securities offered, Rate of Interest and Manner of repayment of above working capital loans :

Name of the bank Rate of interest Security
State Bank of India  MCLR + 0.85%

(effective rate on 31st 
March 2020 is 8.35%)

Primary : (a) All chargeable current assets of the Company including 
stocks and receivables along with Andhra Bank and Citi bank. 
Hypothecation of stock & Receivables.First charge on the goods 
under consignment against letter of credit.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Name of the bank Rate of interest Security
Collateral : 2nd charge on pari passu basis on the entire fixed assets 
of the Company along with Andhra Bank. 

2nd Charge on pari-passu basis on the current assets of the 
company along with citi Bank and Andhra Bank. 

Personal guarantee of Dr.Ramachandra N Galla, Sri Jayadev Galla, 
Smt Aruna Kumari Galla, Dr. G.Rama Devi and Smt.Padmavathi 
Galla.

Andhra Bank  MCLR + 1.2%

(effective rate on 31st 
march 2020 is 9.90%)

Primary :(a) Pari-passu first charge on all current assets of the 
Company along with all other working capital lendors.

Collateral : 2nd charge on pari passu basis on the entire fixed assets 
of the Company along with State Bank of India (excluding assets 
purchased out of the term loan received from Andhra Bank)

Personal guarantee of Dr. Ramachandra N Galla, Sri.Jayadev Galla 
and Sri.Harshavardha Gourineni.

CITI Bank 9.25% First Pari Passu Charge on Present and Future current assets 
of the borrower or as offered to the existing bankers in Multiple 
Banking arrangements. 
Second Paripassu charge on the present and future fixed assets of 
the borrower other than those fixed assets specifically charged to 
term lendors. 
Demand promissory note and letter of Contuinity of facility value 

Personal gurantee of Dr. Ramachandra N Galla & Mr. Jayadev Galla

16A Trade payables

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
- 	 Outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  833.44  449.28 
- 	 Outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  8,025.76  6,903.38 

 8,859.20  7,352.66 
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0 - 120 day 
terms.
For terms with related parties, Refer note 32.
Note forming part of accounts in relation to Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises
(a) 	 the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 

accounting year;
 833.44  449.28 

(b) 	 the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year;

 3.83  1.29 

(c) 	 the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
each accounting year;

 -  - 

(d) 	 the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
( which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006; 

 -  - 

(e) 	 the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and

 3.83  1.29 
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31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
(f) 	 the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 3.83  1.29 

16B Other Financial Liabilities
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current
Interest accrued due on borrowing  105.43  27.34 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowing  -  - 
Employees dues payable  597.07  617.23 
Capital Creditors  459.66  902.25 
Current maturity of non current borrowings (refer note 15)  4,214.00  3,734.87 
Freight & other payables  133.25  120.56 

 5,509.40  5,402.26 

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Borrowings (Note No. 13A and 15)  16,351.02  19,195.32 
Trade Payables (Note No.16A)  8,859.20  7,352.66 
Other financial liabilities (Note No.16B)  1,295.40  1,667.39 

 26,505.62  28,215.36 

9 Current tax liabilities
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current tax liabilities (Net of taxes Paid )  74.81  109.54 
 74.81  109.54 

17 Other liabilities
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current
Advance from customers  384.66  357.04 
Statutory liabilities  159.43  915.52 

 544.10  1,272.56 

18 Revenue from Operations
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Sale of products  80,815.70  86,597.28 
Sale of services  674.49  1,058.19 
Other operating revenues  449.09  792.11 

 81,939.28  88,447.58 
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18.1 Disaggregated revenue information
31-Mar-20

Battery 
Components

Auto 
Components

Metal 
Fabrication

Storage 
Solutions

Custom 
Fabrication

Tool 
works Total

Sales of products 56,850.88 6,194.23 9,325.19 4,840.92 2,900.28 704.22 80,815.70 
Sale of services - 60.67 - 539.72 - 74.10 674.49 
Other operating revenues 65.42  63.57  254.69  52.93  12.47  -  449.09 
Total Revenue from contract 
with customer

56,916.30 6,318.47 9,579.88 5,433.57 2,912.75 778.31 81,939.28 

India 56,489.94 6,318.47 9,573.53 5,433.57 2,912.75 778.31 81,506.56 
Outside India  426.37  -  6.36  -  -  -  432.72 

56,916.30 6,318.47 9,579.88 5,433.57 2,912.75 778.31 81,939.28 

31-Mar-19
Battery 

Components
Auto 

Components
Metal 

Fabrication
Storage 

Solutions
Custom 

Fabrication
Tool 

works Total

Sales of products  58,575.71  7,695.00  10,977.92  7,219.29  2,129.35  - 86,597.28 
Sale of services  107.11  -  -  951.08  -  -  1,058.19 
Other operating revenues  247.25  131.17  318.75  75.96  18.99  -  792.11 
Total Revenue from contract 
with customer

 58,930.07  7,826.17  11,296.67  8,246.33  2,148.34  - 88,447.58 

India  58,924.76  7,826.17  11,296.67  8,242.43  2,148.34  - 88,438.38 
Outside India  5.31  -  -  3.90  -  -  9.21 

 58,930.07  7,826.17  11,296.67  8,246.33  2,148.34  - 88,447.58 

19 Other Income
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest Income on Bank and other deposits (At amortized cost)  208.21  111.70 
Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions  80.58  22.94 
Credit balances written back  -  75.39 
Sale of non process scrap  81.35  25.68 
Miscellaneous Income  42.93  19.70 

 413.07  255.40 

20 Cost of material consumed
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Inventory at beginning of the year  3,185.39  2,654.26 
Transfer on demerger  -  228.12 
Add: Purchases of Material and Stock-in-Trade  52,400.50  60,851.11 
Less: Inventory at end of the year  2,439.15  3,185.39 
Cost of material consumed  53,146.74  60,091.87 
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21 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock- in-trade
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Work-in-process
Opening stock  1,419.59  1,365.02 
Less: Closing stock  (1,457.86)  (1,419.59)

 (38.27)  (54.57)
Finished goods
Opening stock  1,765.08  4,186.62 
Transfer on demerger  -  3,254.77 
Less: Closing stock  (1,798.37)  (1,765.08)

 (33.28)  (833.23)
Stock-in-trade
Opening stock  -  4.16 
Less: Closing stock  -  - 

 -  4.16 
 (71.55)  (883.64)

22 Employee benefits expense
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Salary, wages, and bonus  7,413.40  6,774.68 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  888.32  616.03 
Staff welfare expenses  977.68  946.31 

 9,279.40  8,337.01 

23 Finance Costs
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest expense
Term loans  1,115.61  1,194.53 
Working capital facilities  379.27  356.30 
Other borrowing cost  103.68  164.42 
Bank charges  65.25  95.33 

 1,663.81  1,810.58 

24 Depreciation and amortization expense
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  3,077.55  2,635.92 
Amortisation of intangible assets  46.84  11.62 

 3,124.39  2,647.54 
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25 Other Expenses
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Stores and spares consumed  1,783.98  2,476.77 
Power and fuel  2,334.06  2,441.70 
Insurance  87.58  56.77 
Repairs and maintenance:
Machinery  1,163.68  1,151.58 
Buildings  40.86  61.39 
Others  135.72  120.19 
Other manufacturing expenses  357.80  157.91 
Payment to auditors  10.00  9.00 
Sales expenses  45.12  59.85 
Freight outward  509.55  539.59 
Business Promotion Expense  38.57  16.87 
Remuneration & sitting fees to Non executive Directors  3.03  3.23 
Donations  38.12  25.87 
CSR expenditure (refer note below)  125.92  154.86 
Electricity Charges  6.97  12.84 
Office maintenance  149.42  130.57 
Printing & Stationary  87.27  90.44 
Consultancy & Professional Charges  204.03  581.92 
Rates, Taxes & License  44.41  41.52 
Rent  162.72  184.50 
Telephone Expense  42.19  69.07 
Staff Training Expense  51.58  22.80 
Travel and conveyance  501.98  556.89 
Asset written off  103.91  86.67 
Provision for doubtful debts (net)  216.28  - 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  11.87  12.57 
Miscellaneous expenses  408.70  212.61 

 8,665.33  9,277.96 

26 Details of CSR expenditure
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  125.77  116.77 
In cash  Total 

b) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2020:
i) 	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  121.92  121.92 
ii) 	 On purposes other than (i) above  4.00  4.00 

c) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2019:
i) 	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  154.86  154.86 
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27 Components of other comprehensive income
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans  (181.01)  (141.93)
Deferred tax on remeasured loss  63.25  49.60 

 (117.76)  (92.33)

28 Income Tax
The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as follows:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Profit or loss Section
Current tax  1,190.00  1,568.00 
Deferred tax  908.63  1,015.74 
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss  2,098.63  2,583.74 
OCI Section
Deferred tax on Net loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans  63.25  49.60 
Income tax charged to OCI  63.25  49.60 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Accounting profit before tax  6,544.23  7,421.66 
Enacted Tax Rates in India ( Under MAT) 17.472% 21.549%
Tax at statutory income tax rate  1,143.41  1,599.28 
Less: Tax effects of expenses which are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Depreciation difference  -  - 
Expenses(net of Income) not deductible for tax purposes  (78.22)  0.70 
Tax on Ind AS adjustments  31.63  30.58 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  1,190.00  1,568.00 

Deferred tax
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Deferred tax liabilties (net)  3,772.53  2,927.86 
Deferred tax liabilties (net)  3,772.53  2,927.86 
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2019-2020 Opening 
balance

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

income

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (3,961.34)  (873.16)  - (4,833.79)
Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961, 
allowed on payment basis

 56.88  (55.47)  -  1.41 

Post employment benefits - Gratuity & leave 
encashment

 169.04  10.50  63.25  242.79 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  45.21  94.48  -  139.68 
Minimum alternate tax  762.35  (84.97)  -  677.38 

(2,927.86)  (908.63)  63.25 (3,772.53)

2018-2019 Opening 
balance

Transfered 
on 

demerger

Recognised in 
Statement of 

profit and loss

Recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 
income

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in 
relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (3,691.64) (406.44) (677.67)  - (3,961.34)
Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 
1961, allowed on payment basis

 30.64  19.06  45.30  -  56.88 

Post employment benefits - Gratuity & 
leave encashment

 157.60  11.60  (26.57)  49.60  169.04 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  55.70  9.32  (1.17)  -  45.21 
Minimum alternate tax  1,117.99  -  (355.63)  -  762.35 

(2,329.72)  (366.46)  (1,015.74)  49.60 (2,927.86)
During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the company has paid dividend to its shareholders. This has 
resulted in payment of DDT to the taxation authorities. The company believes that DDT represents additional payment to 
taxation authority on behalf of the shareholders. Hence DDT paid is charged to equity.

29 Earnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Profit for the year  4,445.60  4,837.92 
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings  4,445.60  4,837.92 
Weighted average number of equity shares during the year  13,903,877  13,903,877 
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS  13,903,877  13,903,877 
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)  31.97  34.80 

30 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation 
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable 
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The 
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is 
not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. 
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-
inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
Defined benefit plans 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other accumulated leave entitlement and the present value of the gratuity 
obligation and accumulated leave obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and 
its longterm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based 
on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic 
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details 
about gratuity obligations are given in Note 28.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis based on the useful lives estimated 
by the management. The management believes that useful lives currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives 
and residual values of property, plant and equipment, though these in certain cases are different from lives prescribed 
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
Inventories
The Company estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into account their estimated selling 
price, estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale, obsolescence by applying certain 
percentages over different age category of such inventories, expected loss rate considering the past trend and future 
outlook. Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is lower than their cost.
Estimation of uncertainty relating to COVID-19 outbreak
The Ministry of Home Affairs vide order no. 40-3/2020-DM-I(A) dated March 24, 2020 announced a nationwide lockdown 
as a measure to contain the spread of COVID 19 which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. 
Owing to the lockdown, the operations of the Company were impacted due to shutting down of all plants and offices. 
The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives issued by the Government and is closely
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monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business. The Company is taking appropriate measures 
to ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees and ensuring full compliance with the directives issued by the 
Government in this regard.
The Management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates, interalia, 
recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of intangible assets, inventory, based on the information available 
to date, both internal and external, to the extent relevant, while preparing these financial statements as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2020. Based on the assessment of current indicators of future economic conditions, the Management 
does not envisage any significant impact on its financial statements as on March 31, 2020. The impact assessment of 
COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration, and accordingly, the 
eventual outcome may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements.

31 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
(a) 	 Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognised as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and 
other funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Contribution to provident fund,Super Annuation fund and ESI recognised as 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss  776.66  531.38 

(b) 	 Defined benefit plan
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of 
continuous service gets a gratuity on retirement at 15 days last drawn basic salary for each completed year of 
service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.
The following table’s summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:
Risk Management:
Investment risk - The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular 
investment.
Interest rate risk - The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result 
in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of 
the liability.
Longetivity risk - The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate 
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan 
participants will increase the plan’s liability.
Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with reference to the future salaries of 
participants under the plan. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressures might lead to higher liabilities.

Statement of profit and loss
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
Current service cost  93.64  74.42 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  12.06  4.67 
Net benefit expense  105.70  79.09 
Re measurement during the period/year due to :
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in experience  182.71  137.94 
Return on plan assets excluding interest income  -1.70  3.99 
Amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss statement  181.01  141.93 
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Details of the employee benefits obligations and plan assets are as follows:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation  1,059.10  753.20 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  809.95  561.36 
Net defined benefit liability  249.15  191.84 

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  561.36  397.62 
Transferred on Demerger  -  (27.72)
Transfer out  (5.72)  - 
Past service cost  -  - 
Interest Income  44.77  34.80 
Contributions paid by the employer  229.42  179.11 
Benefits paid  (21.56)  (18.46)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income  1.70  (3.99)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  809.95  561.36 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  753.20  556.63 
Current service cost  93.64  74.42 
Past service cost  -  - 
Interest cost  56.83  39.47 
Transferred on Demerger  -  (36.79)
Transfer out  (5.72)  - 
Re measurement during the period due to :
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience Changes  182.71  137.94 
Benefits paid  (21.56)  (18.47)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  1,059.10  753.20 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown 
below: 

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.82% 7.66%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 7.00% 8.00%

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India 100.00% 100.00%
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Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Discount rate
Impact of Increase by 1% (147.14) (104.99)
Impact of Decrease by 1% 180.45 128.78 
Salary Escalation rate
Impact of Increase by 1% 174.73 125.13 
Impact of Decrease by 1% (145.66) (104.27)

Maturity analysis
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Within 1 year  9.32  16.85 
1-2 year  5.17  19.31 
2-3 year  13.73  3.88 
3-4 year  9.82  10.76 
4-5 year  67.55  7.65 
5-10 year  310.47  217.75 
> 10 Year  643.04  476.99 
Total expected payments  1,059.10  753.20 
The Company expects to contribute INR 200 Lacs to its defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

32 Related party transactions
(a) Nature of relationship and names of related parties

Entity with control:
RNGalla Family Private Limited, Holding company
RNGalla Family & Co (Partnership Firm) [Converted to RNGalla Family Private Limited w.e.f July 11,2017]
Key Management Personnel
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officier
Smt Padmavathi Galla (Up to 31st Mar’2017), Managing Director
Relative of Key Management Personnel
Dr. G. Ramadevi, Mother of Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni
Enterprise on which Key Management Personnel or their relatives have significant influence
Amara Raja Batteries Limited
Amara Raja Power System Limited
Amara Raja Electronics Limited
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited
Amara Raja Industrial Service Private Limited
Rajanna Trust
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(b) Transactions with the related parties during the year

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Remunaration
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  335.07  383.31 
Lease Rents
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  3,885.52  3,757.63 
Donations 
Rajanna Trust  121.92  154.86 
Reimbursements for expenses - Paid to
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  1,177.26  1,167.87 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  173.89  184.97 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  202.75  314.08 
Reimbursements for expenses - Received from
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  4.30  2.57 
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  -  - 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  0.11  0.14 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  0.32  - 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private limited  -  0.03 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  132.59  156.09 
Sale of goods/services
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  82,556.23  85,584.64 
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  484.76  776.65 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  1,179.57  1,260.57 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  477.84  295.06 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private Limited  0.16  0.90 
Rajanna Trust  -  - 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  199.26  240.35 
Purchase of goods/services
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  44.03  46.94 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  8.55  15.61 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private Limited  1,604.48  1,362.88 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  0.39  1.04 
Purchase of Capital goods/services
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  409.97  3,057.48 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  156.51  1,072.17 
Interest Income
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  104.80  6.64 
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  77.25  79.44 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  14.02  - 
Interest expense
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  65.31  59.49 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  1.99  6.57 
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31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
RNGalla Family Private Limited  10.69  37.18 
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  12.50  6.68 
Bill Discounting charges Paid to:
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  -  0.39 
Dividends Paid
RNGalla Family Private Limited (DDT Excluded)  723.00  590.91 
Unsecured Loans
RNGalla Family Private Limited  4,500.00  2,000.00 
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  56.00  100.00 

(c ) Balances with the related parties 
Remunaration Payable 
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  158.21  218.56 
Lease Rents payable
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  987.26  909.35 
Reimbursement of expenses payable
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  126.85  105.78 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  50.30  14.76 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private limited  -  - 
Reimbursement of expenses receivable
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  -  - 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  0.32  8.15 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private limited  -  0.03 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  188.60  258.75 
Trade receivables 
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  228.08  378.32 
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  372.07  1,048.86 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  762.67  260.96 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  115.64  15.84 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private Limited  -  0.15 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  165.23  25.28 
Advances against supply of goods or services 
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  134.82  303.29 
Trade Payables
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  461.64  1.91 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  -  1.49 
Amara Raja Industrial Services Private Limited  -  132.63 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  0.07  - 
Creditor for capital goods 
Amara Raja Infra Private Limited  135.73  255.01 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  -  - 
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31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Advance to capital goods 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  -  422.52 
Interest Payable 
Amara Raja Batteries Limited  2.69  1.00 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  1.81  0.64 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  3.38  2.84 
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  -  6.01 
Unsecured Loans 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  2,500.00  2,000.00 
Sri Harshavardhana Gourineni  156.00  100.00 
Interest receivable 
Amara Raja Electronics Limited  31.30  214.32 
Amara Raja Power Systems Limited  187.65  0.03 
RNGalla Family Private Limited  1.24 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Outstanding balances other than borrowings at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in 
cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year 
ended 31 March 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related 
parties (31 March 2019: INR Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial 
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

33 Contingent Liabilities and commitments
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

A.  Contingent Liabilities 
 Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 
 i) Excise duty/Service Tax/Custom Duty  237.52  237.52 
 ii) Sales Tax  39.78  39.78 

B.  Commitments 
 Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for 

 3,813.34  4,084.45 

34  Business combination 
The Board of Directors of the Company had approved a scheme of arrangement (“the Scheme”) between the Company 
RNGalla Family Private Limited (Resulting Company, RNGFPL) and Mangal Industries Limited (Demerged company), 
effective from April 01, 2018 (appointed date) under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013. The National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad after hearing the arguments approved the scheme on 08th July’2019. Pursuant to the 
Scheme and the accounting for demerger specified therein, the assets and liabilities of the food business undertaking of 
the Company (Demerged undertaking of Demerged company) has been transferred at their book values on the appointed 
date to RNGFPL and accordingly, no restatement under Ind AS has been made for the assets and liabilities transferred 
to give effect to the aforesaid demerger.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   70 29-01-2022   11:52:10



29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   71

i  The assets and liabilities de-recognised as a result of the arrangement are as under; 
 Particulars 1-Apr-18
 Assets 
 Property, Plant and equipment  4,071.10 
 Capital work in progress  62.64 
 Financial asset - Investment  133.98 
 Trade receivables  2,163.25 
 Inventories  3,744.37 
 Cash and cash equivalents  20.83 
 Other bank balances  25.10 
 Other financial assets  552.81 
 Total  10,774.08 
 Liabilities 
 Borrowings  555.59 
 Provisions  33.51 
 Trade payables  307.51 
 Other current liabilities  8,387.38 
 Tax liabilities  366.46 
 Total  9,650.45 
 Excess of assets over liabilities  1,123.64 

The excess amount of assets over liabilities transferred has been adjusted against retained earnings in accordance with 
the accounting treatment specified in the scheme of demerger approved by NCLT. As the entire share capital in demerged 
company is held by the resulting company, no new shares will be issued by the resulting company in consideration of 
transfer of demerged business undertaking.

iii  The income from the foods division undertaking included in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 
31, 2018 was as under; 

 Particulars Year ended 
31-Mar-2018

 Revenue  7,565.62 
 Expenses  8,253.63 
 Net income (688.01)

35  Segment Reporting 
Identifications of Segments
The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.
For management purposes, the company is organised into business units based on its products and services and has 
Six reportable segments, as follows:

i. Battery Components
ii Auto Components
iii Metal Fabrication
iv Storage Solutions
v Custom Fabrication
vi Toolworks
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The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of 
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on 
profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. 

Year end 31 March 2020

Battery 
Components

Auto 
Components

Metal 
Fabrication

Storage 
Solutions

Custom 
Fabrication

Tool 
works Total

Revenue from operations  56,916.30  6,318.47  9,579.88  5,433.57  2,912.75  778.31 81,939.28 
Less: Inter-segment revenue  -  -  -  -  - 
Revenue from operations  56,916.30  6,318.47  9,579.88  5,433.57  2,912.75 778.31 81,939.28 
Segment profit  9,846.47  226.80  727.08  (656.14)  606.22  137.48 10,887.91 
Less: Selling and other 
unallocable expense

4,343.68 

Profit before tax 6,544.23 
Tax expense 2,098.63 
Profit after tax  4,445.60 
Segment Assets  28,937.43  14,702.44  8,740.35 7,524.89  699.03 1,860.88 62,465.02 
Add: Other unallocable assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,591.29 
Total Assets  28,937.43  14,702.44  8,740.35 7,524.89  699.03 1,860.88 64,056.30 

Segment liabilities  5,491.80  2,216.79  2,333.62 1,069.98  339.32 285.78 11,737.30 
Add: Other unallocable liabilities  -  -  -  -  -  -  19,978.61 
Total Liabilities  5,491.80  2,216.79  2,333.62 1,069.98  339.32  285.78  31,715.91 

Segment depreciation  1,562.61  638.88  275.83  260.88  29.33  67.96  2,835.49 
Add: Depreciation on other 
asset

 -  -  -  -  288.90 

Total depreciation  1,562.61  638.88  275.83  260.88  29.33  67.96  3,124.39 

Year end 31 March 2019
Battery 
Compo-
nents

Auto 
Compo-
nents

Metal 
Fabrica-

tion

Storage 
Solutions

Custom 
Fabrica-

tion

Tool 
works Total

Revenue from operations  58,930.06  7,826.17  11,296.67  8,246.33 2,148.34  - 88,447.58 
Less: Inter-segment revenue  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Revenue from operations  58,930.06  7,826.17  11,296.67  8,246.33 2,148.34  - 88,447.58 
Segment profit  9,316.14  989.73  1,203.86  482.75  312.33  - 12,304.81 
Less: Selling and other unallocable 
expense

 4,883.15 

Profit before tax  7,421.66 
Tax expense  2,583.74 
Profit after tax  4,837.92 
Segment Assets  27,043.12  14,494.00  8,168.13  9,504.05  535.95  - 59,745.24 
Add: Other unallocable assets  -  -  -  -  2,193.16 
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Year end 31 March 2019
Battery 
Compo-
nents

Auto 
Compo-
nents

Metal 
Fabrica-

tion

Storage 
Solutions

Custom 
Fabrica-

tion

Tool 
works Total

Total Assets  27,043.12  14,494.00  8,168.13  9,504.05  535.95  - 61,938.40 

Segment liabilities  3,952.38  1,041.40  1,732.67  1,355.97  903.98  -  8,986.40 
Add: Other unallocable liabilities  -  -  -  - 24,067.82 
Total Liabilities  3,952.38  1,041.40  1,732.67  1,355.97  903.98  - 33,054.22 
Segment depreciation  1,484.09  429.75  259.11  289.01  34.35  - 2,496.31 
Add: Depreciation on other asset  -  -  -  -  151.23 
Total depreciation  1,484.09  429.75  259.11  289.01  34.35  - 2,647.54 

Revenue from operations
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Within India  81,506.57  88,438.37 
Outside India  432.72  9.21 
Total revenue as per statement of Profit & Loss  81,939.28  88,447.58 

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.
Revenue from one customer amounted to INR.64610 lacs (31 March 2019: INR 66948 lacs), which constitues more than 
10% of total revenue.

36 Fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Carrying value Fair value
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 6,063.61 6,786.33 6,063.61 6,786.33 
Cash and cash equivalents  11.35  2.94  11.35  2.94 
Bank balances other than above 1,210.84  237.70 1,210.84  237.70 
Loans  336.46  301.50  336.46  301.50 
Other Financial asset  233.71  215.28  233.71  215.28 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings 16,351.02 19,195.32 16,351.02 19,195.32 
Trade payables  8,859.20  7,352.66  8,859.20  7,352.66 
Lease Liabilities  124.05  -  124.05  - 
Other financial liabilities  1,295.40  1,667.39  1,295.40 1,667.39 
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and 
other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments. There are no other investments for which fair value has been deterimed at Level 2 or Level 3 inputs.
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37 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The Company’s 
financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade 
receivables and other receivables.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk and 
Liquidity risk. 
i) 	 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily from trade 
receivables and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange 
transactions and other financial instruments.
Trade receivables
Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, based on our historical experience of collecting receivables, 
supported by the level of default. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business. As per Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss 
or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. 
The provision matrix takes into account the receivables past due and Company’s historical experience for customers.
Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s top management in 
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and 
within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the top management on 
an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s board of directors. 
The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s 
potential failure to make payments. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these 
counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific 
country risks.
Details of financial assets – not due, past due and impaired
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including term deposits (i.e., certificates of deposit) with banks, were past 
due or impaired as at 31 March 2020. The Company’s credit period for trade receivables payable by its customers 
generally ranges from 0 - 90 days. The ageing of trade receivables is given below:

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Neither due nor impaired  1,885.07  3,588.57 
Due butnot impaired  4,523.05  3,325.98 
Total  6,408.12  6,914.55 
Less: Allowance for credit losses  (344.50)  (128.22)
Net trade receivables  6,063.61  6,786.33 

ii) 	 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated 
with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from 
an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.
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The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term 
and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity 
risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities 
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely 
and cost-effective manner.
The table below analyses derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the contractual maturity date from the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are 
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Carrying Value < 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings  16,351.02  6,089.41  10,261.60  - 
Other financial liabilities  1,295.40  1,295.40  -  - 
Trade payables  8,859.20  8,859.20  -  - 
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings  19,195.32  9,916.06  9,279.25  - 
Other financial liabilities  1,667.39  1,667.39  -  - 
Trade payables  7,352.66  7,352.66  -  - 
At present, the Company does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such cash 
commitments, the operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows

iii) 	 Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed 
and variable rate loans and borrowings.
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as 
follows:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Fixed Rate Instrument
Financial Liabilities  2,656.00  2,100.00 

 2,656.00  2,100.00 
Variable Rate Instrument
Financial Liabilities  13,695.02  17,095.32 

 13,695.02  17,095.32 

Interest Rate Sensitivitiy
Effect on Profit before tax

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31-Mar-20
Variable rate instrument  -136.95  136.95 

31-Mar-19
Variable rate instrument  -170.95  170.95 
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iv) 	 Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).
The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as 
under:
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Payable  1,109.1  533.6 
Receivable  102.7  6.1 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other 
variables held constant

Changes in rate Effect on profit before tax 
31-Mar-20 5%  -50.32 

-5%  50.32 

31-Mar-19 5%  -26.98 
-5%  26.98 

38 Capital management
The Company endeavors to maintain sufficient levels of working capital, current assets, and current liabilities which 
helps the company to meet its expense obligations while also maintaining sufficient cash flow. The capital structure of 
the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (comprising 
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings). The capital structure of the Company is reviewed by the management 
on a periodic basis. 
As at 31 March, 2020, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has low debt. Consequent to such capital 
structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital 
structure, the Company allocates its capital for distribution as dividend or re-investment into business based on its long 
term financial plans.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Borrowings  16,351.02  19,195.32 
Less: Cash & cash equivalents  1,222.19  240.64 
Net Debt  15,128.83  18,954.68 
Total Equity  32,340.39  28,884.17 
Net Debt to Total Equity 0.47 0.66

39 Leases
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ effective April 1, 2019 and applied the Standard to its leases. Ind AS 
116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using 
the modified retrospective approach, Right-of-use assets at April 1, 2019 for leases previously classified as operating 
leases were recognised and measured at an amount equal to the lease liability (adjusted for any prepayments/accruals). 
As a result, the comparative information has not been restated. The Company has discounted lease payments using 
the incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 for measuring lease liability. In respect of leases, previously classified 
as finance leases, the right-of-use asset was measured at the carrying amounts of the related finance lease asset and 
re-classified. 
On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation 
cost for the right-of-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability
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Accordingly, on transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised right-of-use assets amounting to ₹.1469.17 lakhs 
(including previously classified as finance lease) and a lease liability of ₹ 128.84 Lakhs.

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2020

(i) 	 The following is the breakup of current and non-current lease liabilities
Current liabilities 29.78
Non-current liabilities 94.28
Total 124.05

(ii) 	 The following is the movement of lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020
Balance at the Transition date 128.84
Additions during the year 20.17
Finance cost accrued during the year 10.32
Payment of lease liabilities 35.28
Balance at the end 124.05

(iii) 	 Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Less than one year 29.78
One to five years 94.28
More than five years  - 
Total 124.05

(iv) 	 The impact of change in accounting policy on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows

Particulars
For the year 

ended 
31st March, 2020

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 23) 10.32
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 3) 32.26
Rent expenditure that would have been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under Ind 
AS 17

35.28

(v) 	 The impact on the profit for the year is not material.

40 COVID 19 Impact
“The Ministry of Home Affairs vide order no. 40-3/2020-DM-I(A) dated March 24, 2020 announced a nation-wide 
lockdown as a measure to contain the spread of COVID 19 which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health 
Organisation. Owing to the lockdown, the operations of the Company were impacted due to shutting down of all plants 
and offices. The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives issued by the Government 
and is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business. The Company is taking appropriate 
measures to ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees and ensuring full compliance with the directives issued 
by the Government in this regard.
The Management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates, inter-
alia, recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of intangible assets, inventory, based on the information 
available to date, both internal and external, to the extent relevant, while preparing these financial results as of and 
for the year ended March 31, 2020. Based on the assessment of current indicators of future economic conditions, the 
Management does not envisage any significant impact on its financial results and financial position as on March 31, 
2020. The impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature 
and duration, and accordingly, the eventual outcome may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval 
of these financial results.”

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in ` lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Ammara Raja AR2019-20_Kala_V6.indd   77 29-01-2022   11:52:10



Mangal Industries Limited

78   |  29TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

41 Subsequent Events
There are no events that occoured after the balance sheet date that have an impact on the financial statements.

42 The balances with some of the customers and suppliers accounts are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
43 Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever required to confirm to current period classification.
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